
 

 
          

 
AGENDA 

 
SALT SPRING ISLAND HOUSING ACTION PROGRAM TASK FORCE 

 
Date: Thursday, December 2, 2021 
Time: 10:00 AM 
Location: Salt Spring Island Baptist Church - Lower Hall, 520 Lower Ganges Road 

 
 
1. AGENDA           10:00 - 10:05 

 
1.1. Approval of Agenda 

 
2. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS        10:05 – 10:10 

 
2.1. Draft minutes of the November 17, 2021 – HAPTF Meeting – For adoption  Page 2 

 
3. ADMINISTRATIVE UPDATE         10:10 – 11:00 

 
3.1. Housing Action Program Task Force Resolutions      

3.2. Draft Bylaw No. 527 – Fees Bylaw - Staff Memorandum      

3.3. OCP review matrix          
 

4. OTHER BUSINESS             
 
4.1. Vision Statement 

4.2. Public Engagement 

4.3. Lower Income Housing 
 

5. ADJOURNMENT 
 

11:00 – 12:00

Page 38

Page 10

Page 6

Salt Spring Island Housing Program Task Force
December 1, 2021                          Page 1 of 38



 

 
 DRAFT 1 

Housing Action Program Task Force 
November 17, 2021 

  

 

Salt Spring Island  
Housing Action Program Task Force 

Meeting Minutes 
 
 
Date: 

 
Wednesday, November 17, 2021 

  
Location: Baptist Church, Lower Level Meeting Room 

520 Lower Ganges Road, Salt Spring Island 
  

Members Present: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Regrets: 
 
Staff Present: 

Rhonan Heitzmann, Chair 
Kerrie Proulx, Vice Chair 
Maïkan Bordeleau  
Bryce Chapman 
Nejmah Guermoudi 
Yvonne Saunders  
Jessica Terezakis 
Daniel Wood 
 
Stanley Shapiro 
 
Sarah Shugar, Recorder 

 
Others Present: 

 
Mairi Welman, Presenter 
One member of the public 
 

 
These minutes follow the order of the agenda although the sequence may have varied.  
 
The meeting was called to order at 5:06 p.m. Chair Heitzmann welcomed the task force members and 
acknowledged the meeting is being held in Coast Salish First Nations treaty and traditional territory. 
Chair Heitzmann proceeded with a roll call. It was noted Meror Krayenhoff has resigned from the task 
force. 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
1.1 Approval of Agenda  

   
  The following supplemental item was presented for consideration: 
  4.1  Mairi Welman – Public Engagement Plan 
 
  By general consent, the agenda was adopted as amended. 
 
2.  MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS 
 
 2.1 Approval of Draft Minutes for November 4, 2021 

Salt Spring Island Housing Program Task Force
December 1, 2021                          Page 2 of 38



 

 
 DRAFT 2 

Housing Action Program Task Force 
November 17, 2021 

  

 By general consent, the minutes of the November 4, 2021 Housing Action Program Task 
Force meeting were adopted. 

 
3.  BUSINESS ITEMS  
 
 3.1 Housing Action Program Task Force Resolutions 
 

 The Housing Action Program Task Force Resolutions to October 20, 2021 document was 
presented. 

Chair Heitzmann reported the Task Force requested staff to provide data regarding how 
many potential densities were provided as a result of the Secondary Suites Bylaw and 
the Affordable Housing - Cottages Bylaw and how many housing units have actually 
been permitted and added to the housing pool. It was noted staff presented some data 
regarding potential densities although staff have not provided data on how many 
dwelling units were built. Chair Heitzmann will follow up with staff regarding data on 
how many dwelling units were built. Chair Heitzmann reported the Salt Spring Island 
Local Trust Committee (LTC) supported several Task Force recommendations and that 
the LTC requested staff to report back on potential bylaw amendments to permit 
accessory dwelling units in all zones at the November 9, 2021 LTC meeting. 

Member Bordeleau arrived at the meeting at 5:13 p.m. 
 
4. OTHER BUSINESS  
 
 4.1 Public Engagement Plan and Survey 
 

 Mairi Welman spoke to public engagement as a follow up from the presentation at the 
November 4, 2021 meeting. She circulated a District of Vancouver Public Engagement 
Guide. She recommended that the Task Force focus on strategy such as introducing the 
Task Force to the community. 

 
  In discussion the following comments and questions were noted: 

 Concern was expressed that there are no funds in the project budget for public 
engagement at this time. 

 There was a suggestion to focus on one or two priority issues. 

 There was a suggestion to host design charettes as part of the public engagement 
process. 

 There was a suggestion for a few members to come up with a plan and to focus on 
one step at a time, such as a craft activity that includes children. 

 There was a question regarding what is the main statement that the Task Force 
would like to communicate. 

 There was a suggestion to clarify what is the main pushback in the community and 
how can the public engagement plan address the main obstacles. There was a 
suggestion to focus on aligning with their values. 

 There was a concern that the survey was not the most accessible public engagement 
tool. 

Salt Spring Island Housing Program Task Force
December 1, 2021                          Page 3 of 38



 

 
 DRAFT 3 

Housing Action Program Task Force 
November 17, 2021 

  

 There was a suggestion to meet with staff regarding how increasing housing would 
impact the staff workload. 

 There was a suggestion to focus on every property on SSI that has the ability to have 
a suite or cottage and to base the next steps on the work that has already been 
done with the secondary suites bylaw and the cottages bylaw. 

 There was a comment that there is criticism that the Task Force has made 
recommendations prior to public engagement. There was a comment that the 
rationale for making the recommendations prior to public engagement is that there 
is a housing emergency. 

 There was a suggestion that “we are in search of landlords”. 

 There was a suggestion to prepare a statement that could be shared in 
communication channels such as an editorial in the Driftwood Newspaper. 

 There was a suggestion for video interviews with people who have suites in their 
homes and/or tenants that live in rental suites such as testimonials from owners 
and renters that include a broad range of experience. 

 Concern was expressed that the draft public engagement plan is too complex and 
there was a question regarding whether the draft public engagement plan approach 
fits into the overall plan. 

 There was a suggestion to focus on awareness raising and education. 
 
M. Welman left the meeting at 6:15 p.m. 
 

By general consent, the Housing Action Program Task Force agreed that Member 
Chapman, Member Proulx and Member Terezakis will meet to draft a vision statement 
that focuses on permitting accessory dwelling units on all areas of Salt Spring Island, to 
be presented to staff and at the December LTC meeting. The statement could be 
communicated on various communication channels. Member Bordeleau volunteered to 
help with economics such as cost and benefit per square foot.  
 
By general consent, the Housing Action Program Task Force agreed to invite RPM 
Cermak to attend the next meeting to discuss implementation of accessory dwelling 
units and impacts to staff workload. 
 
By general consent, the Housing Action Program Task Force agreed Chair Heitzmann 
would talk to RPM Cermak and Planner Garbo regarding the consensus of the Task Force 
is that the draft public engagement plan is too complex and the Task Force would prefer 
to simplify the plan and encourage staff to lean on community groups for public 
engagement. The Task Force request staff to provide clarity on communication channels 
the Task Force can use. 
 
By general consent, the Housing Action Program Task Force agreed to email feedback 
regarding the public engagement plan including red flags and suggestions to Planner 
Garbo and that the Task Force would prefer to not to take up more in person meeting 
time. 

 
 4.2 Spectrum of Housing needs – None 
 

Salt Spring Island Housing Program Task Force
December 1, 2021                          Page 4 of 38



 

 
 DRAFT 4 

Housing Action Program Task Force 
November 17, 2021 

  

  This item was not addressed due to lack of time. 
 

 4.3 Short-Term Vacation Rental (STVR) – None 
 
  This item was not addressed due to lack of time. 

5. ADJOURNMENT  

 The meeting was adjourned at 7:01 p.m. 

 
 

_________________________ 
Rhonan Heitzmann, Chair 

 
 
CERTIFIED CORRECT: 
 
 
_________________________ 
Sarah Shugar, Recorder 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 

Salt Spring Island Housing Program Task Force
December 1, 2021                          Page 5 of 38



Housing Action Program Task Force Resolutions

Meeting Date Resolution Work Flow
Date 

Completed

20-May-21 NA

17-Jun-21 NA

15-Jul-21 NA

6-Aug-21 NA

19-Aug-21

That the Housing Action Program Task Force request staff to schedule 

meetings as follows: The next regular meeting will be held on September 

16, 2021. The following regular meetings will be held on the first Thursday 

of each month at 10:00 a.m. (beginning in October 2021.) A second 

monthly meeting will be scheduled on the third Wednesday of each month 

at 5:00 p.m. (beginning October 20, 2021).

PTA to schedule meetings 1-Oct-21

19-Aug-21

That the Housing Action Program Task Force accept the volunteer role of 

Member Guermoudi and Member Terezakis to be the keepers of the 

Strategic Priorities Matrix document, to integrate ideas and keep the 

document up to date. 

19-Aug-21

That the Housing Action Program Task Force recommend the Salt Spring 

Island Local Trust Committee defer enforcement on long term use of 

commercial and seasonal accommodation.

• Staff to take to LTC. 

19-Aug-21

That the Housing Action Program Task Force recommend the Salt Spring 

Island Local Trust Committee update the existing standing resolution 

regarding unlawful dwellings to include until sustainable housing solutions 

are implemented.

• Staff to take to LTC.  

Salt Spring Island Housing Program Task Force
December 1, 2021                          Page 6 of 38



Housing Action Program Task Force Resolutions

Meeting Date Resolution Work Flow
Date 

Completed

19-Aug-21

That the Housing Action Program Task Force recommend the Salt Spring 

Island Local Trust Committee update the existing standing resolution 

regarding unlawful dwellings (items a, b, c and d) to be more specific as 

follows: a. does not meet health and safety regulations; b. sewage is not 

being disposed of in an approved septic or sewage disposal system; c. 

septic or sewage disposals are being used in excess of capacity or ability as 

a result of unlawful dwellings d. there is contamination of wells or other 

drinking water sources;

• Staff to take to LTC.  

19-Aug-21

That the Housing Action Program Task Force recommend the Salt Spring 

Island Local Trust Committee to direct staff to develop procedures to 

expedite affordable housing, supportive housing and social housing 

projects in support of the Salt Spring Island Official Community Plan policy 

that prioritizes affordable housing rezoning applications.

• Staff to take to LTC

19-Aug-21

That the Housing Action Program Task Force recommend the Salt Spring 

Island Local Trust Committee update Secondary Suites Bylaw No 461 as 

follows: permit secondary suites in all zoning districts or districts chosen 

by the Salt Spring Island Local Trust Committee; allow secondary suites in 

accessory buildings; protect water for secondary suites and mandate that 

an alternative supply must be used where water concerns exist; update 

water requirements to align with Island Health regulations for multi family 

dwellings; and require a Housing Agreement to specify that the 

secondary suite is to be used for long-term use.

• Staff to take to LTC

16-Sep-21

That the Housing Action Program Task Force recommend to the Salt Spring 

Island Local Trust Committee that the draft Bylaw No. 526 proceed with a 

recommendation that the LTC explore options to make more agricultural 

housing available.

• Staff to take to LTC 

Salt Spring Island Housing Program Task Force
December 1, 2021                          Page 7 of 38



Housing Action Program Task Force Resolutions

Meeting Date Resolution Work Flow
Date 

Completed

7-Oct-21

To request staff to provide data regarding how many potential densities 

were provided as a result of the Secondary Suites Bylaw and the Affordable 

Housing - Cottages Bylaw and how many housing units have actually been 

permitted and added to the housing pool.

• Staff to provide densities.

7-Oct-21

By general consent, the Housing Action Program Task Force agreed to add 

Short-Term Vacation Rental (STVR) data to the next meeting agenda. 

Member Proulx will share data regarding STVR impacts in other 

communities.

• PTA to add placeholder on next agenda.

7-Oct-21

By general consent, the Housing Action Program Task Force request staff 

to look into the Norton Road property regarding affordable housing 

potential.

• Staff to review.

7-Oct-21

The Housing Action Program Task Force recommend the Salt Spring Island 

Local Trust Committee endorse Trustee Patrick’s resolution regarding a 

business case for a SSI Housing Authority including the following 

recommendations: · Invite the Capital Regional District Housing 

Corporation to participate in the process; · Consider how other 

communities in BC such as Whistler as an example of a community that has 

been successful in providing affordable housing for workers; · Document 

the process and identify successes and challenges.

• Staff to review.

7-Oct-21

The Housing Action Program Task Force request the Salt Spring Island Local 

Trust Committee to add the creation of an inter-jurisdictional Housing 

Authority to the scope of the Housing Action Program Project Charter as 

recommended by the Housing Working Group report phase two.

 • Staff to review.

7-Oct-21
The Housing Action Program Task Force request staff to follow up on the 

request to find a more neutral meeting place.

• PTA reviewed possibilites and spoke with 

Task Force about them
20-Oct-21

20-Oct-21 NA

Salt Spring Island Housing Program Task Force
December 1, 2021                          Page 8 of 38



Housing Action Program Task Force Resolutions

Meeting Date Resolution Work Flow
Date 

Completed

4-Nov-21

That the Housing Action Program Task Force recommend the Salt Spring 

Local Trust Committee proceed with the proposed Tiny Homes Village Pilot 

Project.

4-Nov-21
That the Housing Action Program Task Force requests staff to start the 

Coffee with a Planner Program.

Salt Spring Island Housing Program Task Force
December 1, 2021                          Page 9 of 38



  MEMORANDUM 

Referral of Draft Fees Bylaw 

Islands Trust Memorandum 1 

File No.: 3900-03: LPS Admin Bylaw 
 (SS-BL-527) 

DATE OF MEETING: November 25, 2021 

TO: Salt Spring Island Advisory Planning Commissions (APC, AAPC, Ganges Village Task 
Force and Housing Action Program Task Force) 

FROM: Stefan Cermak, Regional Planning Manager 
Salt Spring Island Team 

SUBJECT: Referral of Draft Fees Bylaw – Consideration of Community Benefit 

PURPOSE 

At their November 9, 2021 meeting, the Salt Spring Island Local Trust Committee (SS LTC) considered draft Bylaw 
No. 527 which is an amendment to the Salt Spring Islands Local Trust Committee fees bylaw (Bylaw No. 428). After 
refining the bylaw, the SS LTC requested staff to refer Bylaw 527 to their four advisory planning commissions 
(Advisory Planning Commission, Agricultural Advisory Planning Commission, Ganges Village Planning Task Force, 
and Housing Action Program Task Force). Specifically, the SS LTC requested input regarding community benefits. 
The draft resolution is as follows:  

SS-2021-210 
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
That the Salt Spring Island Local Trust Committee request the staff report regarding New Fees Bylaw as 
per Trust Council Policy 5.6.1. be referred to the Advisory Planning Commissions and Task Forces and 
request specific input be considered regarding community benefits. 
CARRIED 

 

The amended bylaw No. 527 is attached in Appendix 1 (note this is a “red-lined” version showing the most recent 
approved changes).  

BACKGROUND 

At its regular business meeting in June 2021, Trust Council adopted a new Application Processing 
Services Policy (5.6.1) that includes a model fee bylaw. Trust Council requested all local trust committees to 
consider adoption of a new application processing fees bylaw based on the model fees bylaw attached to the 
newly adopted policy. At their October 5, 2021 meeting, the SS LTC received the request and subsequently 
requested staff to draft a new fees bylaw based on the model fees bylaw attached to the Trust Council Policy 5.6.1. 
(Appendix 2.) 

As noted above, at its November 9, 2021, the SS LTC received draft Bylaw No. 527 (Appendix 3 with staff report). 
The SS LTC made some amendments and referred it to the Advisory Planning Commissions for comment on 
community benefits. 

 

Salt Spring Island Housing Program Task Force
December 1, 2021                          Page 10 of 38



Islands Trust Staff Report 2 

Key points: 

 Bylaw No. 527 is, and must be, in harmony with Policy 5.6.1 (see Appendix 2 for policy).  

 Bylaw No. 527 – includes the following regarding “Community Benefit”: 

o “Community Benefit” refers to an application that results in provision of an amenity that is of value 
to the community, and identified in the Official Community Plan as a community amenity (i.e. 
Section H.3 of Bylaw No. 434).” 

o “Community Benefits” is in relation to temporary use permits for a use under a specified size that 
provides a community benefit. Specifically, Temporary Use Permit for residential uses or 
commercial uses under 95 square metres that provide community benefit.  

o The fee for a TUP that provides a community benefit is reduced from $2,150 to $1,000 and from 
$700 to $350 for a renewal. 

 The SS LTC may define community benefit based on its official community plan (OCP) definition of 
community benefit. There is no specific definition for community amenity in the OCP. Instead, a brief 
review of the OCP identifies the following items listed as community amenities: 

OCP 
Reference 

Community Amenity 

A.5.2.3 The protection of Environmentally Sensitive Areas or High Biodiversity.. 

A.6.2.10 Energy efficient building design features exceeding the BC Building Code.. 

A.8.2.6 The restoration and heritage designation of buildings... 

A.8.2.16 The permanent formal protection of an archaeological site or other site of significance to 
First Nations peoples… 

B.2.2.2.5 Land for affordable housing…  

B.4.4.2.6  …Land provided…to relocate the Ganges Firehall site…  

B.4.5.2.3  Land and facilities for community cultural purposes… 

B.6.2.2.12  …community owned farmland or land for community farm product processing or storage 
facilities…  

B.7.2.2.6  Public park and recreation lands or recreational facilities (or money to purchase them)… 

C.2.2.2.6  The construction of walking and bicycle pathways for transportation or recreation …  

The above are also referenced in Appendix 3 (Section H) with the addition of a community woodlot: 

H.3.2.1  a the dedication of intact Environmentally Sensitive Areas to a public or private 

conservation body, or protection through conservation covenant.  

Salt Spring Island Housing Program Task Force
December 1, 2021                          Page 11 of 38



Islands Trust Staff Report 3 

b. land for, or construction of, affordable or special needs housing.  

c. the dedication of public park and recreation lands, or of funds to be held in trust for their 

purchase, to the Capital Regional District.  

d. land that is acceptable to the Salt Spring Fire District for the location of a fire station, if 

provided to the District at no charge and it results in public ownership of the Ganges 

Firehall site.  

e. land for community-owned farmland or land for community agricultural processing or 

storage facilities provided to the Salt Spring Farmers' Institute or a community farmland 

trust organization.  

f. the provision and construction of bicycle lanes, pedestrian and bicycle pathways or trails 

that add to or support links in the island trail network.  

g. the dedication of alignment and construction of a Ganges Alternate Route. 

h. protection, restoration and designation of heritage property.  

i. suitable, productive forest land donated to a community organization for the operation 

of a community owned and managed woodlot.  

j. implementation of energy efficient building design criteria that exceeds that required by 

the B.C. Building Code or other regulations.  

k. land or facilities for community cultural or recreational purposes.  

l. the permanent formal protection of an archaeological site or other site of significance to 

First Nations peoples. 

 

 The Fees Bylaw is an administrative bylaw, not a project, thus there are no resources for engagement or 
further staff time for analysis (this occurred during development of the Trust Council policy and model 
fees bylaw). 

 This is not an opportunity to amend the OCP. However, it may be an opportunity to recommend OCP 
amendments for the future – in other words, respective advisory planning commissions may recommend 
that the Salt Spring Island Local Trust Committee add [list items] as community amenities within the 
Official Community Plan.  

 NEXT STEPS 

The respective Advisory Planning Commissions may make recommendations to the SS LTC regarding community 
benefits. The SS LTC will consider the recommendation. The SS LTC may the give three reading to an administrative 
bylaw in one meeting. The SS LTC must then refer it to the Executive Committee for their approval and then give 
final reading for adoption of the bylaw. The trust wide goal is to have each local trust committee adopt a new fees 
bylaw by March 2022 – before the start of the next fiscal period. Therefore, the SS LTC should consider first three 
readings no later than January 2022. 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Bylaw No. 527 (as amended Nov. 9, 2021) 
2. Request For Decision for the meeting of October 5, 2021 
3. Staff Report dated November 9, 2021 

Salt Spring Island Housing Program Task Force
December 1, 2021                          Page 12 of 38



 

 

SALT SPRING ISLAND LOCAL TRUST COMMITTEE 
 

BYLAW NO. 527 
 

 
A bylaw to prescribe fees for amending bylaws, issuing permits, examining applications for subdivision, and 
examining other referrals and applications.  

 

 
WHEREAS Section 462 of the Local Government Act provides that a local government may, by bylaw, 
impose fees related to applications and inspections; Section 41 of the Liquor Control and Licensing Act and 
Section 35 of the Cannabis Control and Licensing Act provides that a local government may, by bylaw, 
impose fees for referral of a license under that Act; 

 
NOW THEREFORE the Salt Spring Island Local Trust Committee, being the Local Trust Committee having 
jurisdiction in respect of the Salt Spring Island Local Trust Area in the Province of British Columbia pursuant 
to the Islands Trust Act, enacts as follows: 
 

Citation 

1.1 This bylaw may be cited as the "Salt Spring Island Local Trust Committee Fees Bylaw, No. 527”. 
 

Interpretation 

2.1 In this bylaw: 
 

“Applicant” means:  
 

2.1.1 the person authorized under the Salt Spring  Island Local Trust Committee 
Development Procedures Bylaw No. 304, 1993 to make an application in respect of a 
bylaw or permit under the Islands Trust Act or Part 14 or Part 15 of the Local 
Government Act; 
 

2.1.2 an applicant for a license under the Liquor Control and Licensing Act in respect of which 
the Local Trust Committee is requested or required to provide comments or 
recommendations;  
 

2.1.3 an applicant for a license under the Cannabis Control and Licensing Act in respect of 
which the Local Trust Committee is requested or required to provide comments or 
recommendations;  
 

2.1.4 an applicant for subdivision review under the Land Title Act or the Strata Property Act;  
 

2.1.5 an applicant for the conversion of a previously occupied building to strata lots under 
the Strata Property Act; 
 

2.1.6 an applicant for a soil deposit permit or soil removal permit issued pursuant to a bylaw 
enacted under Part 14 of the Local Government Act; or 
 

2.1.7 an applicant to a board of variance established under Part 14 of the Local Government 
Act. 

DD RR AA FF TT   Appendix 1

Salt Spring Island Housing Program Task Force
December 1, 2021                          Page 13 of 38



 

 

 
 

“Application Processing Fee” means the initial amount payable to the Islands Trust in respect of any 
application under this bylaw. 
 
“Community Benefit” refers to an application that results in provision of an amenity that is of value to the 
community, and identified in the Official Community Plan as a community amenity (i.e. Section H.3 of 
Bylaw No. 434). 
 
“General Service Cost” includes average hourly cost of each staff position involved in processing the 
applications multiplied by the average number of hours taken to complete processing of that type of 
application, and includes administrative overhead costs..  

 
“Estimated Direct Costs” for bylaw amendments listed in Table 1 means the Islands Trust’s estimate of its 
actual average cost of disbursements associated with the processing of an application, including: 

1. newspaper advertising for one community meeting,  
2. notifications, postal and delivery costs of statutory notifications for one public hearing,  
3. rental of premises for one community meeting meetings and/or one public hearing, 
4. contract minute-taker costs recording or preparation of minutes of one community meeting 

and/or one public hearing and,  
5. staff travel expenses for one site visit, one community meeting and one public hearing. 

 
“Estimated Direct Costs” for temporary use permits listed in Table 2 means the Islands Trust’s estimate of 
its actual average cost of disbursements associated with the processing of an application, including  

1. one newspaper advertisement, notifications, postal and delivery costs of statutory notifications for 
one community meeting,  

2. rental of premises for one community meeting,  
3. contract minute-taker costs recording or preparation of minutes of one community meeting, and  
4. staff travel expenses for one site visit, one community meeting.  

 
“Islands Trust” means the Director of Local Planning Services or their authorized representative. 
 

Application Fees 

3.1 Prior to the processing of an application listed in Column 1 of Table 1, Table 2, Table 3 or Table 4, 
the applicant must deliver to Islands Trust the corresponding application processing fee in the 
amount shown in Column 2 subject to section 4.  The application fee includes general service costs 
and estimated direct costs.   

 

TABLE 1 – Bylaw Amendments (OCP and Zoning Bylaw) 

Column 1: Type of Application Column 2: Fee 

1. Major (e.g. change to density or OCP)  $7,800 

2. Minor (e.g. regulation change without changing density or OCP 
amendment) 

$4,600 

  
 
 
 
 
 

Salt Spring Island Housing Program Task Force
December 1, 2021                          Page 14 of 38



 

 

 

TABLE 2 –  Permits  

Column 1: Development Permit in Respect of: Column 2: Fee 

1. Protection of Natural Environment, Ecosystems and Biological 
Diversity 

 $1,0001,200 

2. Protection of Development from Hazardous Conditions $1,0001,200 

3. Protection of Farming $1,0001,200 

4. Objectives for Form and Character $1,700 

5. Objectives to Promote Energy Conservation $1,0001,200 

6. Objectives to Promote Water Conservation $1,0001,200 

7. Objectives to Promote the Reduction of Greenhouse Gas Emissions $1,0001,200 

8. Development Permit Amendment  $1,000 

  

Type of Development Variance Permit  

9. Development variance permit (commercial, industrial or institutional 
development) 

$1900 

10. Development variance permit (residential development) $1900 

 

Type of Temporary Use Permit  

11. Temporary Use Permit  (residential/commercial/industrial) $2150 

12. Temporary Use Permit for residential uses or commercial uses under 
95 square metres that provide community benefit. 

$1000 

13. Temporary Use Permit Renewal $700  

14. Temporary Use Permit Renewal (Community Benefit) $350 

 

Other Permits  

15. Siting and Use Permit $250 

16.15. Heritage Alteration Permit $1,700 

 

Combination  Applications 

17.16. Development Permit in respect of a protection area or water and 
energy conservation in combination with a companion application 
for a Development Variance Permit  

$2,500 

18.17. Development Permit in respect of form and character in 
combination with a companion application for a Development 
Variance Permit  

$3,000 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Salt Spring Island Housing Program Task Force
December 1, 2021                          Page 15 of 38



 

 

 
 

TABLE 3 –  Subdivision Referrals  

Column 1 Column 2: Fee 

1. Application for Subdivision Review – base fee  $1,0001,200 

2. Application for Subdivision Review – per additional lot created $100 

3. Application for Subdivision Review – parcel line adjustments only, 
creating no additional parcels 

$500 

 

TABLE 4 – Other Applications 

Column 1: Type of Application  Column 2: Fee 

1. Board of Variance $2,200 

2. Land Use Contract amendment $2,000 

3. Liquor & Cannabis Regulation Branch –  Retail License Application 
and  Process and referrals requiring local government consultation 

$1,500 

4. Liquor & Cannabis Regulation Branch – Temporary License Change  $500 

5. Strata Conversions  $1,500 

Note: Agricultural Land Commission (ALC) Application Fees are determined by the ALC. 
 

4. Fee for After-the-Fact Application 

4.1 An application for a permit or bylaw amendment to authorize work or an activity already 
undertaken, or in operation as of the date the application is made, the rated in 3.1 will be 
subject to a 20% surcharge.  

 

5. Collection and Refund of Application Processing Fee Amounts 

5.1 The total application processing fee must be received before the processing of the application 
can begin.  

 

5.2 An applicant may withdraw their application at any time through written notice to the Planning 
Assistant and/or the Planner responsible for processing the application. 

 

5.3 If an applicant withdraws an application before staff undertakes any planning work on the 
application, the Islands Trust must refund to the applicant the Application Fee, less $100.  

 

5.4 For an application in Table 1, or a Temporary Use Permit in Table 2, the applicant will be eligible 
for: 75% refund if the application is withdrawn once the file has been assigned by the regional 
planning manager to the planner; 50% refund if the first staff report has been submitted to the 
LTC; 25% refund once public notice of a public hearing or permit has been sent out, no refund 
will be provided after a Public Hearing or after consideration of the Permit by the local trust 
committee.    

 
 
 

Salt Spring Island Housing Program Task Force
December 1, 2021                          Page 16 of 38



 

 

5.5 For applications in Table 2 (except for Temporary use Permit applications), Table 3 and Table 4, 
the applicant will be eligible for: 75% refund if the application is withdrawn once the file has 
been assigned to the planner; no refund will be provided if the first staff report has been 
submitted to the LTC, Board of Variance, or formal referral response submitted to the relevant 
agency. 

 

6. Extraordinary Service Costs (ESC) 

6.1 Extraordinary Services Costs will be paid by the Applicant through a cost recovery agreement,  
       entered into with Islands Trust, in addition to the application processing fee. 
 

6.2 Where legal work is required for the preparation of covenants, registration of covenant at Land 
Title Offices, registration of notice of a permit or housing agreement at the Land Title Office or for 
other purposes related to the application, staff will provide the Applicant with an estimate of the 
costs. The Applicant will pay a deposit of 150% of this estimate. 

 

6.3 Where site visits involving First Nations are required for the processing of an application, staff will 
provide the Applicant with an estimate of the costs. The Applicant will pay a deposit of 150% of 
this estimate. 

 

6.4 Where there may be need for additional community information meeting or public hearing not 
covered by the application processing fee, staff will provide the Applicant with an estimate of 
costs. The Applicant will pay a deposit of 150% of this estimate. 

 

6.5 Where other additional costs beyond the general service costs and estimated direct costs not 
specified above are required for processing of an application, staff will provide the Applicant with 
an estimate of the costs. The Applicant will pay a deposit of 150% of this estimate. 

 

6.6 If the amount paid by Islands Trust in respect of Extraordinary Service Costs is less than the deposit 
provided to the Islands Trust, the Islands Trust shall provide the Applicant with the amount and 
the applicant shall pay the amount upon receipt. The local trust committee may withhold the 
consideration of issuance of any permit or hold the consideration of adoption of any bylaw in 
abeyance until the amount has been paid.  

 

6.7 Islands Trust must refund the unused portion of any Extraordinary Service Costs deposit to the 
applicant if it is unused for any reason. 

 

7. Annual Fee Increases 

7.1 Fees in section 3.1   increase by 2% on April 1st of each year following the date of adoption of 
the bylaw.  

 

7.2 The Salt Spring Island Local Trust Committee will maintain a record of annual 2% increases and 
make that record available for public inspection.  

 
 

Salt Spring Island Housing Program Task Force
December 1, 2021                          Page 17 of 38



 

 

8. Application Fee Sponsorship 

8.1 Pursuant to Islands Trust Policy 4.1.13, Guidelines for Executive Committee Sponsored or Local 
Trust Committee Initiated Development Applications, an applicant may apply to the Executive 
Committee of Islands Trust for development application fee sponsorship. 

 

9. Severability 

9.1 In the event a portion of this bylaw is set aside by a court of competent jurisdiction, the invalid 
portion shall be severed and the remainder of the bylaw remains in force and in effect. 

 

10. Repeal 

10.1 “Salt Spring Island Local Trust Committee Fees Bylaw No. 428” is repealed upon adoption of this 
bylaw. 

10.2 Any application for which a fee has been fully paid at the time this bylaw comes into force shall be 
processed to completion in accordance with the fee provisions of the repealed bylaw.  

 
 
 

 
 

READ A FIRST TIME THIS  _____ DAY OF ______________,  20___ 
  
READ A SECOND TIME THIS  _____ DAY OF ______________,  20___ 
 
READ A THIRD TIME THIS  _____ DAY OF ______________,  20___ 
 
APPROVED BY THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF THE ISLANDS TRUST THIS 
  _____ DAY OF ______________,             20___ 
 
ADOPTED THIS    _____ DAY OF ______________,   20___ 

 
 
 

              
 CHAIR         SECRETARY 
 

Salt Spring Island Housing Program Task Force
December 1, 2021                          Page 18 of 38



Islands Trust  Request For Decision Page 1 

 

 
 
 

REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 

 
To: Local Trust Committees  For the Meeting of: October 5, 2021 
     
From: David Marlor, Director, Local 

Planning Services 
 Date Prepared: September 15, 2021 

     
SUBJECT:
  

New Fee bylaws 

 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That the Salt Spring Island Local Trust Committee request Staff to draft a new Fee Bylaw based on the 
model fee bylaw attached to Trust Council Policy “5.6.1 Application Processing Services.” 
 
DIRECTOR COMMENTS: 
The recommendation will allow staff to draft a fee bylaw specific to each local trust committee’s needs 
based on the model fee bylaw adopted by Trust Council.  
  

 
1 PURPOSE:  To update all local trust committee fee bylaws to be consistent with the new 

Application Processing Services policy.  
 
2 BACKGROUND: 

 
At its regular business meeting in June 2021, Trust Council adopted a new Application Processing 
Services Policy that includes a model Fee Bylaw. Trust Council also passed the following 
resolution: 
 

That Trust Council request all local trust committees to consider adoption of a new 
application processing fees bylaw based on the model fees bylaw attached to Policy 
5.6.1 “Application Processing Services”. 

 
The Trust Council application processing services policy has been amended to: 
 

1. clarify more specifically the activities covered by the application fee to remove ambiguity; 
2. remove the need for planners to determine the work required at the start of the process, 

which has been identified as practically impossible to implement; 
3. establish an objective of 80 per cent of the average processing cost for cost recovery; 
4. add more clarity around when cost recovery agreements are required, and what are 

considered extraordinary cost charges; and 
5. add a model fees bylaw to the policy as an attachment.  

 
A new model fees bylaw has been developed that: 
 

Appendix 2

Salt Spring Island Housing Program Task Force
December 1, 2021                          Page 19 of 38



Islands Trust  Request For Decision Page 2 

1. has updated fees that better reflect the actual average cost of processing the various 
types of applications, designed to include the staff costs and the fixed costs, such as 
meeting expenses and advertising; 

2. adds consideration for recovery of costs associated with First Nation site visits if required; 
3. adds more robust fee refund policy to improve fairness; 
4. adds an annual automatic increase of fees of two percent to reflect the estimated actual 

cost increases due to inflation and collective agreement increases for staff; 
5. retains ability of local trust committees to reduce fees by up to 20 percent, intended to 

allow flexibility recognizing local factors affecting cost of application processing;  
6. adds flexibility to allow for reduced temporary use permits fees for community benefits as 

defined by the local trust committee in its official community plan; and 
7. adds a 20 per cent higher fee for applications where development began without a permit 

or permission to reflect the higher cost of processing such an application. 
 
Each local trust committee has been asked by Trust Council to update its fee bylaw to be 
consistent with the model fee bylaw approved by Trust Council. If a local trust committee wishes 
to adjust fees in accordance with items 5 and 6 above, the local trust committee should include 
this request in the resolution to develop a draft fee bylaw.  While a local trust committee is under 
no legislative obligation to amend its fees bylaw, Trust Council has developed the model fee bylaw 
to assist in assuring the fees charged better reflect the cost of processing applications using 
shared resources throughout the Islands Trust Area.  
 
Please note that fees charged are to recover the average cost of processing that type of 
application. Fees cannot be used to be punitive, or to raises funds above the average cost of 
processing an application. Local trust committees cannot charge fees for building permit referrals 
or Crown land referrals as there is no authority provided to do so.   
 
Local trust committees are authorized to charge fees for different types of applications as follows: 
 

 Section 462 of the Local Government Act provides that a local government may, by bylaw, 
impose fees related to applications and inspections to recover the average costs of processing 
official community plan amendments, land use bylaw amendments, subdivisions bylaw 
amendments , heritage conservation bylaw amendments, issuance of a development permit, 
development variance permit, temporary use permit, heritage alteration permit, land use 
contract amendments, heritage revitalisation agreement amendments, board of variance orders, 
and inspection of works and services related to applications and permits, and subdivision 
applications; 

 Section 31(2)(b) of the Islands Trust Act provides that a local trust committee may impose fees to 
recover the cost of processing siting and use permits; 

 Section 41 of the Liquor Control and Licensing Act provides that a local government may, by 
bylaw, impose fees to recover the cost of processing liquor and liquor licensing referrals; and 

 Section 35 of the Cannabis Control and Licensing Act provides that a local government may, by 
bylaw, impose fees to recover the cost of processing a referral for a license under that Act. 

 
Section 462 of the Local Government Act also states that local governments must not impose a 
fee, charge a tax or require works or services to be provided unless authorized by this Act or any 
other Act. For this reason, fees are not charged for processing of building permit and Crown land 
referrals, as there is no authorization in any Act for local trust committees to recover these costs. 
 
Fee bylaws are administrative bylaws. There is no requirement for public input. The local trust 
committee may consider first, second and third readings all at one meeting. The Executive 
Committee must approve the bylaw before the local trust committee can consider adoption. 
 

Salt Spring Island Housing Program Task Force
December 1, 2021                          Page 20 of 38



Islands Trust  Request For Decision Page 3 

Ideally, all local trust committees will have considered updating their bylaws by March 2022 so 
that the assumptions on revenue can be included in the next fiscal year budget process.  

 
 
 
3 IMPLICATIONS OF RECOMMENDATION 
 

ORGANIZATIONAL: 
Staff will draft a fee bylaw based on the model fee bylaw and bring back to a future local trust 
committee meeting for consideration. 
 
FINANCIAL: 
No financial implication from the recommendation. 
 
POLICY: 
Updating the Fee bylaw will be consistent with Trust Council Policy 5.6.1 Application Processing 
Services. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION/COMMUNICATIONS: 
Local planning staff assigned to the local trust committee will draft fee bylaw for local trust 
committee consideration. 
 
FIRST NATIONS: 
No First Nations implications from the recommendations. 
 
OTHER: 

 No other implications from the recommendations. 
 
4 RELEVANT POLICY(S): 

Trust Council Policy 5.6.1 Application Servicing Process 
 
5 ATTACHMENT(S): 

Trust Council Policy 5.6.1 Application Processing Services 
 

 
RESPONSE OPTIONS 
 
Recommendation:  
 
That the Salt Spring Island Local Trust Committee request Staff to draft a new fee bylaw based on the 
model fee bylaw attached to Trust Council Policy “5.6.1 Application Processing Services.” 
 
Alternative: 
That the Salt Spring Island Local Trust Committee request Staff to draft a new fee bylaw based on the 
model fee bylaw attached to Trust Council Policy “5.6.1 Application Processing Services” with the 
following modifications: [list modifications]. 
 

 
Prepared By:  David Marlor, Director, Local Planning Services 
 
Reviewed By/Date:        Julia Mobbs, Director, Administrative Services/Aug 2021 

Salt Spring Island Housing Program Task Force
December 1, 2021                          Page 21 of 38



Policy – 5.6.1 Application Processing Services Page 1 

 

Policy: 5.6.1 

Approved By: Trust Council 

Approval Date: June 9, 2021 
Repeals policies 5.6.1, 5.6.2 and 
5.6.3 

Amendment Dates:   

Policy Holder: Director of Local Planning Services 

 

APPLICATION PROCESSING SERVICES POLICY 

Purpose 

This policy is intended: 

 to identify the services provided by Islands Trust and the different levels of costs associated with these 

services;  

 to provide direction for the preparation of Fees Bylaws and Schedules by Local Trust Committees 

(LTCs); 

 to provide the principles by which cost recovery for extraordinary services beyond the standard fee 

can be negotiated and agreed to by an applicant and a LTC; 

 to recover from applicants 100 per cent of the average cost of processing the development 

applications, while permitting consideration of lower cost recovery for environmental protection and 

community benefit.  

 

A. Definitions 

1. Application Processing Services include: 

1.1 Bylaw Amendments to an official community plan, zoning bylaw, subdivision bylaw or 

other land use bylaws; 

1.2 Development Application Requests for:  

1.2.1 Development Permits, 

1.2.2 Development Variance Permits, 

1.2.3 Temporary Use Permits, 

1.2.4 Soil Removal and Deposit Permits, 

1.2.5 Heritage Alteration Permits, 

1.2.6 Board of Variance Orders, 

1.2.7 Liquor Licensing Permits, 

1.2.8 Cannabis Licensing Permits, 

1.2.9 Siting & Use Permits, 

1.2.10 Land Use Contracts; 

1.3 Agency Referral Responses and Comments on applications referred from other 

agencies. 

2. Service Levels include: 

Salt Spring Island Housing Program Task Force
December 1, 2021                          Page 22 of 38



Policy – 5.6.1 Application Processing Services Page 2 

2.1 Information Service that involves providing information to applicants and the general 

public at no cost, as a public service, and funded by property taxation revenues. 

2.2 Standard Application Processing Service that involves providing a specific service to 

applicants as a direct response to an application, whether directly to Islands Trust or 

through a referral from another agency, and primarily funded by established fees paid 

by an applicant. 

2.3 Extraordinary Processing Service is a service provided to the applicant that is beyond 

the standard processing service, with funding provided by the applicant as a deposit 

with the application fee or through a cost recovery agreement. 

3. Costs: 

3.1 General Service Costs includes average hourly cost of each staff position involved in 

processing the applications multiplied by the average number of hours taken to 

complete processing of that type of application, and includes administrative overhead 

costs. 

3.2 Estimated Direct Costs include advertisements, delivery of notices, hall rentals, minute 

taking at public hearings and community information meetings, and staff travel to 

attend public hearings and community information meetings.  

3.3 Extraordinary Processing Costs include costs beyond the standard processing service 

such as additional community information meetings, review of technical reports 

provided by specialists hired by the applicant, and specific legal services such as the 

preparation and registration of legal documents and the acquisition of legal advice. 

4. Community Benefit: 

4.1 Community benefit is the provision of an amenity that is of value to the community, 

and identified in the Official Community Plan as a community benefit or amenity. 

B. Policy 

1. Standard Application Processing Services  

Applicants are responsible for paying different rates based on the level of service. The details 

involved in each level of a standard application processing service are identified below. 

1.1  Information Service – No Fee Required 

Information services are considered a public service and include:   

1.1.1  providing information on application process requirements including a 

meeting with staff; 

1.1.2  providing assistance to complete an application; 

1.1.3 determination of applicable fees; 

Salt Spring Island Housing Program Task Force
December 1, 2021                          Page 23 of 38



Policy – 5.6.1 Application Processing Services Page 3 

1.1.4  identification of readily identifiable issues to be addressed.  

1.2  Application and Processing Service – Included in Application Fee 

For rezoning applications, temporary use permit applications, development variances, 

development permits, liquor and cannabis retail license applications, and strata 

conversion applications, the application fee covers the following services: 

1.2.1 comprehensive staff assessment including site visit where required; 

1.2.2 staff reports; 

1.2.3 discussion between planners and applicant throughout process; 

1.2.4 review of archaeological data; 

1.2.5 staff referral to other agencies, advisory planning commissions, and analysis of 

their comments; 

1.2.6  bylaw or resolution drafting, including review for compatibility with Trust 

Object and policies and the relevant Official Community Plan; 

1.2.7  staff report with recommendation for Local Trust Committee (LTC) approval 

consideration; 

1.2.8  processing bylaws through Executive Committee for approval consideration, if 

necessary; 

1.2.9  forwarding to Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing for approval 

consideration, if necessary; 

1.2.10 adoption of all bylaws or issuing of permits as required. 

1.3 Public Hearing – Included in Application Fee  

Services related to a Public Hearing that will be provided to an applicant who has paid 

an application fee include: 

1.3.1 conducting one public hearing with staff present (includes staff time, staff 

travel costs and estimated direct costs such as meeting place rental, 

newspaper notice of public hearing, minute taker fee, and delivery of notices 

when needed). 

1.4 Community Information Meeting – Included in Application Fee  

Services related to a Community Information Meeting that will be provided to an 

applicant who has paid an application fee include: 

1.4.1 conducting one community information meeting with staff present (includes 

staff time, staff travel costs, and estimated direct costs such as meeting place 

rental and delivery of notices when needed). 

 

Salt Spring Island Housing Program Task Force
December 1, 2021                          Page 24 of 38



Policy – 5.6.1 Application Processing Services Page 4 

2. Extraordinary Processing Services – additional fees required 

Extraordinary Processing Services are services provided to the applicant that are beyond the 

standard processing services identified in 1.1- 1.4. Applicants are responsible for paying 

additional fees for extraordinary processing services.  

2.1 Role of LTC in Determining Necessity for Extraordinary Services 

2.1.1 Local trust committees (LTCs) can determine the necessary requirements for 

processing applications. These requirements may necessitate extraordinary 

processing services, where the actual or estimated processing service level 

costs are in excess of the costs of a standard application fee for a similar 

process because:  

2.1.1.1 of additional requirements such as additional public consultation, 

complex covenant requirements or extensive staff time; or, 

2.1.1.2 the processing requirements include services obtained from 

professions outside Islands Trust such as special technical assistance 

and/or specific legal services; or, 

2.1.1.3  the processing requirements include First Nations site visit(s). 

2.1.2 The Regional Planning Manager is responsible for assisting LTCs in identifying 

and costing extraordinary processing service requirements and advising the 

LTCs of the options available to handle these requirements.  

2.1.3 The Regional Planning Manager is responsible for ensuring that complex 

service requirements include terms of reference which outline detailed criteria 

and parameters for the extraordinary services that are required. 

2.2 Provision of Extraordinary Processing Services 

2.2.1 Extraordinary processing services can be provided by Islands Trust via a cost 

recovery agreement, with costs to be paid by the applicant, in addition to the 

applicable standard fee. 

2.2.2 A resolution of the LTC following the recommendation of the Regional 

Planning Manager is required to proceed. 

2.2.3 When extraordinary processing service requirements have been identified, the 

applicant should be advised by staff that the application cannot be processed 

until additional funds are provided by the applicant and a cost recovery 

agreement with the Islands Trust is signed and a security deposit has been 

received. 

3. Extraordinary Services Cost Recovery Agreements 

3.1 Extraordinary Services Cost Recovery – Principles 

Salt Spring Island Housing Program Task Force
December 1, 2021                          Page 25 of 38



Policy – 5.6.1 Application Processing Services Page 5 

3.1.1 Cost Recovery Agreements reflect a service level which includes the 

extraordinary services needed to undertake the approval process for a 

complex application. 

3.1.2 Cost Recovery Agreements will endeavour to recover all costs of processing 

that exceed the standard costs of processing services.  

3.1.3 The existence of a Cost Recovery Agreement will not fetter a LTC's discretion 

with respect to an application before the committee. 

3.1.4 Authority for negotiating Cost Recovery Agreements is provided within the 

respective LTC Fees Bylaws. 

3.1.5 Cost Recovery Agreements will proceed only by resolution of the LTC after 

consultation with the Regional Planning Manager, except in situations where 

an applicant is seeking to discuss an issue directly with Islands Trust legal 

advisors, in which case the Director of Local Planning Services may approve 

the Cost Recovery Agreement. 

3.1.6 The Cost Recovery Agreement letter will be submitted, together with the 

recommendation of the Regional Planning Manager and the LTC resolution, for 

approval by the Director of Local Planning Services (or designate) prior to final 

agreement with the applicant. 

3.2  Services Requiring Extraordinary Services Cost Recovery Agreement   

The services identified below are considered to be beyond the scope of standard 

processing services. These services require payment, in addition to standard 

application fees established in the Fees Bylaw, of additional fees based on a cost 

recovery agreement between the Islands Trust and an applicant: 

3.2.1 staff time required for covenant development; 

3.2.2  staff time to attend more public consultation meetings than that already 

covered by the standard application fee, including community information 

meetings, advisory planning commission meetings, and public hearings; 

3.2.3  technical assessments or studies as required by the local trust committee; 

3.2.4  retaining special technical assistance required by the local trust committee; 

3.2.5  additional legal counsel services required for the application not covered 

under the estimated direct costs of the Fees Bylaw; 

3.2.6  process agreement negotiation; 

3.2.7 First Nations site visits; 

3.2.8  other resources and/or services required by the local trust committee to 

process the application not covered by the Fees Bylaw. 

Salt Spring Island Housing Program Task Force
December 1, 2021                          Page 26 of 38



Policy – 5.6.1 Application Processing Services Page 6 

4. Funding Basis and Fee Adjustments 

4.1 Application processing services are funded primarily through fees, as per a LTC’s Fees 

Bylaw. Local trust committees should adopt a Fees Bylaw consistent with the model 

Fees Bylaw in Attachment 1. 

4.2 Standard fees in Fees Bylaws are to be based on average processing costs, as per 

Section 462 of the Local Government Act, Section 31(2)(b) of the Islands Trust Act, 

Section 41 of the Liquor Control and Licensing Act, and Section 35 of the Cannabis 

Control and Licensing Act. Standard fees are calculated as the product of staff labour 

costs multiplied by processing time (including Planner and administrative support). 

Standard application fees include estimated direct costs.  

4.3 A local trust committee may enact variances of up to 20% below what is indicated in 

the Trust Council’s Model Fees Bylaw when adopting a LTC Fees Bylaw. The following 

criteria must be considered when evaluating a fee variance: 

4.3.1 the level of community/environmental benefit offered by the type of 

application; 

4.3.2 variances in direct costs (e.g. hall rental); and, 

4.3.3 an amendment to an approved application occurring within 6 months of 

the approval date. 

4.4 Variance to a Fees Bylaw must be adopted by bylaw amendment. All LTC Fees Bylaws 

and Fees Bylaw amendments must be approved by the Executive Committee before 

adoption by a LTC.  

4.5 Where the model fees bylaw permits reduced fees for temporary use permits that 

have a community benefit and are small scale, the local trust committee fees bylaw 

must specify the actual community benefit to which the fee applies, and should be 

supported by policies in the official community plan on what are considered amenities 

to the community. 

4.6 Applications for development that begin without a permit or bylaw authorisation are 

subject to a 20 per cent surcharge to recover the additional cost in processing these 

types of applications. 

5. Application Fee Sponsorship 

5.1 If eligible, as identified in Trust Council Policy 4.1.13 Guidelines for Executive 

Committee Sponsored or Local Trust Committee Initiated Development Applications, 

the applicant may apply for development application fee sponsorship. 

 

 

Salt Spring Island Housing Program Task Force
December 1, 2021                          Page 27 of 38

http://www.islandstrust.bc.ca/media/348585/tc_2004-06-10_4113guidelinesforecsponsoredorltcinitiateddevapp-pol-final.pdf
http://www.islandstrust.bc.ca/media/348585/tc_2004-06-10_4113guidelinesforecsponsoredorltcinitiateddevapp-pol-final.pdf


Policy – 5.6.1 Application Processing Services Page 7 

6. Development Approval Information  

6.1 The Development Approval Information (DAI) Bylaw provides a mechanism to ensure 

that the LTC receives appropriate reports and documentation (such as reports from 

engineers, biologists, hydrogeologists, and geotechnical specialists) from applicants to 

support rezoning, temporary use permit, and development permit applications.  

6.2 DAI bylaws reduce operational costs by ensuring that applications are complete and 

the information provided is appropriate. 

6.3 Local trust committees should adopt a development approval information bylaw. 

6.4 The Regional Planning Committee should develop a model Development Approval 

Information bylaw for addition as Attachment 2 to this policy.  

C. Legislated References 

Local Government Act, S.462 

Local Government Act, S.486 

Liquor Control and Licensing Act, S.41 

Cannabis Control and Licensing Act, S.35 

D. Attachments/Links to Supporting Forms, Documents, Websites, Related Policies and Procedures 

1. Model Fees Bylaw 

 

 

  

Salt Spring Island Housing Program Task Force
December 1, 2021                          Page 28 of 38



Policy – 5.6.1 Application Processing Services Page 8 

 

[INSERT LTC NAME] LOCAL TRUST COMMITTEE 

 

BYLAW NO. [XX] 

 

  

 

 A bylaw to prescribe fees for amending bylaws, issuing permits, examining applications for 

subdivision, and examining other referrals and applications. Model fees reflect the cost recovery for 

application processing. 

 

  

 

WHEREAS Section 462 of the Local Government Act provides that a local government may, by bylaw, impose fees 

related to applications and inspections; Section 41 of the Liquor Control and Licensing Act and Section 35 of the 

Cannabis Control and Licensing Act provides that a local government may, by bylaw, impose fees for referral of a 

license under that Act, [DENMAN AND HORNBY ONLY and Section 31(2)(b) of the Islands Trust Act provides that a 

local trust committee may impose a fees to recover the cost of processing siting and use permits] ; 

 

NOW THEREFORE the [Insert LTC Name] Local Trust Committee, being the Local Trust Committee having 

jurisdiction in respect of the [Insert LTC Name] Local Trust Area in the Province of British Columbia pursuant to the 

Islands Trust Act, enacts as follows: 

 

Citation 

1.1 This bylaw may be cited as the "[Insert LTC Name] Local Trust Committee Fees Bylaw, No. [XX]". 

 

Interpretation 

2.1 In this bylaw: 

“Applicant” means:  

2.1.1  the person authorized under the _______ Island Local Trust Committee 

Procedures Bylaw No. ____, ______ to make an application in respect of a bylaw or permit 

under the Islands Trust Act or Part 14 or Part 15 of the Local Government Act; 

2.1.2  an applicant for a license under the Liquor Control and Licensing Act in respect 

of which the Local Trust Committee is requested or required to provide comments or 

recommendations;  

Salt Spring Island Housing Program Task Force
December 1, 2021                          Page 29 of 38



Policy – 5.6.1 Application Processing Services Page 9 

2.1.3  an applicant for a license under the Cannabis Control and Licensing Act in 

respect of which the Local Trust Committee is requested or required to provide comments or 

recommendations;  

2.1.4  an applicant for subdivision review under the Land Title Act or the Strata Property Act;  

2.1.5  an applicant for the conversion of a previously occupied building to strata lots under 

the Strata Property Act; 

2.1.6  an applicant for a soil deposit permit or soil removal permit issued pursuant to a bylaw 

enacted under Part 14 of the Local Government Act; or 

2.1.7  an applicant to a board of variance established under Part 14 of the Local Government 

Act. 

 

“Application Processing Fee” means the initial amount payable to the Islands Trust in respect of any application 

under this bylaw. 

 

“Community Benefit” refers to an application that results in provision of an amenity that is of value to the 

community, and identified in the Official Community Plan as a community benefit. 

[NOTE: This is in relation to temporary use permits for a use under a specified size that provides a community 

benefit. The local trust committee would define community benefit here based on its official community plan 

definition of community benefit] 

 

“General Service Cost” includes average hourly cost of each staff position involved in processing the applications 

multiplied by the average number of hours taken to complete processing of that type of application, and includes 

administrative overhead costs..  

 

“Estimated Direct Costs” for bylaw amendments listed in Table 1 means the Islands Trust’s estimate of its actual 

average cost of disbursements associated with the processing of an application, including: 

1. newspaper advertising for one community meeting,  
2. notifications, postal and delivery costs of statutory notifications for one public hearing,  
3. rental of premises for one community meeting meetings and/or one public hearing, 
4.  contract minute-taker costs recording or preparation of minutes of one community meeting 

and/or one public hearing and,  
5. staff travel expenses for one site visit, one community meeting and one public hearing. 

 

“Estimated Direct Costs” for temporary use permits listed in Table 2 means the Islands Trust’s estimate of its actual 

average cost of disbursements associated with the processing of an application, including  

Salt Spring Island Housing Program Task Force
December 1, 2021                          Page 30 of 38



Policy – 5.6.1 Application Processing Services Page 10 

1. one newspaper advertisement, notifications, postal and delivery costs of statutory notifications for 
one community meeting,  

2. rental of premises for one community meeting,  
3. contract minute-taker costs recording or preparation of minutes of one community meeting, and  
4. staff travel expenses for one site visit, one community meeting.  

 

“Islands Trust” means the Director of Local Planning Services or their authorized representative. 

 

Application Fees 

3.1 Prior to the processing of an application listed in Column 1 of Table 1, Table 2, Table 3 or Table 4, the 

applicant must deliver to Islands Trust the corresponding application processing fee in the amount shown in 

Column 2 subject to section 4.  The application fee includes general service costs and estimated direct costs.   

 

TABLE 1 – Bylaw Amendments (OCP and Zoning Bylaw) 

Column 1: Type of Application Column 2: Fee 

1. Major (e.g. change to density or land use designation)  $7,800 

2. Minor (e.g. policy change without changing density or land use 
designation not requiring an OCP amendment) 

$4,600 

  

 

TABLE 2 –  Permits  

Column 1: Development Permit in Respect of: Column 2: Fee 

1. Protection of Natural Environment, Ecosystems and Biological Diversity  $1,000 

2. Protection of Development from Hazardous Conditions $1,000 

3. Protection of Farming $1,000 

4. Objectives for Form and Character $1,700 

5. Objectives to Promote Energy Conservation $1,000 

6. Objectives to Promote Water Conservation $1,000 

7. Objectives to Promote the Reduction of Greenhouse Gas Emissions $1,000 

8. Development Permit Amendment  $1,000 

  

Salt Spring Island Housing Program Task Force
December 1, 2021                          Page 31 of 38



Policy – 5.6.1 Application Processing Services Page 11 

Type of Development Variance Permit  

9. Development variance permit (commercial, industrial or institutional 
development) 

$1900 

10. Development variance permit (residential development) $1900 

 

Type of Temporary Use Permit  

11. Temporary Use Permit  (residential/commercial/industrial) $2150 

12. Temporary Use Permit for residential uses and commercial uses under 
95 square metres that provide community benefit.. 

$1000 

13. Temporary Use Permit Renewal $700  

14. Temporary Use Permit Renewal (Community Benefit) $350 

 

Other Permits  

15. Siting and Use Permit $250 

16. Heritage Alteration Permit $1,700 

 

Combination  Applications 

17. Development Permit in respect of a protection area or water and energy 
conservation in combination with a companion application for a 
Development Variance Permit  

$2,500 

18. Development Permit in respect of form and character in combination 
with a companion application for a Development Variance Permit  

$3,000 

 

TABLE 3 –  Subdivision Referrals  

Column 1 Column 2: Fee 

1. Application for Subdivision Review – base fee  $1,000 

2. Application for Subdivision Review – per additional lot created $100 

3. Application for Subdivision Review – parcel line adjustments only, 
creating no additional parcels 

$500 

 

 

Salt Spring Island Housing Program Task Force
December 1, 2021                          Page 32 of 38



Policy – 5.6.1 Application Processing Services Page 12 

TABLE 4 – Other Applications 

Column 1: Type of Application  Column 2: Fee 

1. Board of Variance $2,200 

2. Land Use Contract amendment $2,000 

3. Liquor & Cannabis Regulation Branch –  Retail License Application and 
Process  

$1,500 

4. Liquor & Cannabis Regulation Branch – Temporary License Change  $500 

5. Strata Conversions  $1,500 

 

4. Fee for After-the-Fact Application 

4.1 An application for a permit or bylaw amendment to authorize work or an activity already undertaken, 
or in operation as of the date the application is made, the rated in 3.1 will be subject to a 20% surcharge.  

 

5. Collection and Refund of Application Processing Fee Amounts 

5.1 The total application processing fee must be received before the processing of the application can begin.  

 

5.2 An applicant may withdraw their application at any time through written notice to the Planning Assistant 
and/or the Planner responsible for processing the application. 

 

5.3 If an applicant withdraws an application before staff undertakes any planning work on the application, 
the Islands Trust must refund to the applicant the Application Fee, less $100.  

 

5.4 For an application in Table 1, or a Temporary Use Permit in Table 2, the applicant will be eligible for: 75% 
refund if the application is withdrawn once the file has been assigned by the regional planning manager 
to the planner; 50% refund if the first staff report has been submitted to the LTC; 25% refund once public 
notice of a public hearing or permit has been sent out, no refund will be provided after a Public Hearing 
or after consideration of the Permit by the local trust committee.    

 

5.5 For applications in Table 2 (except for Temporary use Permit applications), Table 3 and Table 4, the 
applicant will be eligible for: 75% refund if the application is withdrawn once the file has been assigned 
to the planner; no refund will be provided if the first staff report has been submitted to the LTC. 

 

6. Extraordinary Service Costs (ESC) 

6.1        Extraordinary Services Costs will be paid by the Applicant through a cost recovery agreement,  
       entered into with Islands Trust, in addition to the application processing fee. 

Salt Spring Island Housing Program Task Force
December 1, 2021                          Page 33 of 38



Policy – 5.6.1 Application Processing Services Page 13 

6.2 Where legal work is required for the preparation of covenants, registration of covenant at Land Title Offices, 
registration of notice of a permit or housing agreement at the Land Title Office or for other purposes related 
to the application, staff will provide the Applicant with an estimate of the costs. The Applicant will pay a 
deposit of 150% of this estimate. 

6.3 Where site visits involving First Nations are required for the processing of an application, staff will provide 
the Applicant with an estimate of the costs. The Applicant will pay a deposit of 150% of this estimate. 

6.4 Where there may be need for additional community information meeting or public hearing not covered by 
the application processing fee, staff will provide the Applicant with an estimate of costs. The Applicant will 
pay a deposit of 150% of this estimate. 

6.5 Where other additional costs beyond the general service costs and estimated direct costs not specified 
above are required for processing of an application, staff will provide the Applicant with an estimate of the 
costs. The Applicant will pay a deposit of 150% of this estimate. 

6.6 If the amount paid by Islands Trust in respect of Extraordinary Service Costs is less than the deposit provided 
to the Islands Trust, the Islands Trust shall provide the Applicant with the amount and the applicant shall 
pay the amount upon receipt. The local trust committee may withhold the consideration of issuance of any 
permit or hold the consideration of adoption of any bylaw in abeyance until the amount has been paid.  

6.7 Islands Trust must refund the unused portion of any Extraordinary Service Costs deposit to the applicant 
if it is unused for any reason. 

 

7. Annual Fee Increases 

7.1 Fees in section 3.1   increase by 2% on April 1st of each year following the date of adoption of the bylaw.  

 

7.2 The (Insert LTC Name) will maintain a record of annual 2% increases and make that record available for 
public inspection.  

 

8. Application Fee Sponsorship 

8.1 Pursuant to Islands Trust Policy 4.1.13, Guidelines for Executive Committee Sponsored or Local Trust 
Committee Initiated Development Applications, an applicant may apply to the Executive Committee of 
Islands Trust for development application fee sponsorship. 

 

9. Severability 

9.1 In the event a portion of this bylaw is set aside by a court of competent jurisdiction, the invalid portion shall 
be severed and the remainder of the bylaw remains in force and in effect. 

 

10. Repeal 

10.1 “[Insert LTC Name] Local Trust Committee Fees Bylaw No. [XX]” is repealed upon adoption of this bylaw. 

10.2 Any application for which a fee has been fully paid at the time this bylaw comes into force shall be processed 
to completion in accordance with the fee provisions of the repealed bylaw.  

 

READ A FIRST TIME this  st  day of        , 20 

READ A SECOND TIME this st  day of        , 20 

Salt Spring Island Housing Program Task Force
December 1, 2021                          Page 34 of 38



Policy – 5.6.1 Application Processing Services Page 14 

READ A THIRD TIME this  st day of        , 20 

APPROVED BY THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF THE ISLANDS TRUST 

this     th  day of        , 20 

ADOPTED this    th day of        , 20 

 

 

 

_______________________________   _______________________________ 

  Chair         Deputy Secretary 

 

 

 

Salt Spring Island Housing Program Task Force
December 1, 2021                          Page 35 of 38



  STAFF REPORT 

  

Islands Trust Staff Report 1 

File No.: 
3900-03: LPS Admin Bylaw 
(SSI Fees Bylaw) 

 
DATE OF MEETING: November 9, 2021 

TO: Salt Spring Island Local Trust Committee 

FROM: Stefan Cermak, Regional Planning Manager 
Salt Spring Island Team 

COPY: David Marlor, Director of Local Planning Services 

SUBJECT: New Fee Bylaw as per Trust Council Policy 5.6.1 

   

RECOMMENDATION 

1. That the Salt Spring Island Local Trust Committee Bylaw No. 527, cited as “Salt Spring Island Local Trust 
Committee Fees Bylaw, 2021”, be given first, second, and third reading. 

2. That the Salt Spring Island Local Committee Bylaw No. 527, cited as “Salt Spring Island Local Trust 

Committee Fees Bylaw, 2021”, be forwarded to the Secretary of the Islands Trust for approval by the 

Executive Committee.  

REPORT SUMMARY 

The purpose of this report is for the Salt Spring Island Local Trust Committee (SS LTC) to consider adoption of Bylaw 
No. 527 which would replace Bylaw No. 428 (SSI LTC Fees Bylaw) to include:  

 An expanded Interpretation section. 

 Fee changes for the various applications. 

 Fees for applications received though work or activity is already undertaken or in operation. 

 Clarification of collection of fees and refunds. 

 A new section to address Extraordinary Service Costs (ESC) 

 A new section to address Annual Fee Increases. 

BACKGROUND 

At the October 5, 2021 Salt Spring Island Local Trust Committee regular business meeting, the SS LTC passed the 
following resolution: 

SS-2021-197  
It was MOVED and SECONDED, 

That the Salt Spring Island Local Trust Committee request staff to draft a new Fee Bylaw based on the 

model fee bylaw attached to Trust Council Policy “5.6.1 Application Processing Services.” 

CARRIED 

Appendix 3

Salt Spring Island Housing Program Task Force
December 1, 2021                          Page 36 of 38



Islands Trust Staff Report 2 

Rationale for Recommendation 

At its regular business meeting in June 2021, Trust Council adopted a new Application Processing Services Policy 
that includes a model Fee Bylaw. At the same meeting, Trust Council requested all local trust committees to adopt 
the new fees bylaw. On October 5, 2021, the SS LTC requested staff to draft a new Fee Bylaw based on the model 
fee bylaw. Draft Bylaw No. 527 is attached.  

 

Submitted By: 
Stefan Cermak 
Regional Planning Manager  

October 27, 2021 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Draft Bylaw No. 527 (see Appendix 1 of memo to APCs)

Salt Spring Island Housing Program Task Force
December 1, 2021                          Page 37 of 38



OCP Chapters Task Force Volunteer(s)

PART B - LAND USE OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

B.1        GENERAL LAND USE OBJECTIVES

B.2        RESIDENTIAL LAND USE OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
B.3        NON-VILLAGE COMMERCIAL AND GENERAL EMPLOYMENT 

LAND USE OBJECTIVES AND POLICIESB.4        COMMUNITY & INSTITUTIONAL LAND USE OBJECTIVES AND 

POLICIES

B.5        VILLAGE LAND USE OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

B.6        RESOURCE LAND USE OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

B.7        PARK AND RECREATION LAND USE OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

B.8        CONSERVATION LAND USE OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

B.9        SHORELINE AND AQUATIC USE OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

PART C - INFRASTRUCTURE AND SERVICING OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

C.1        GENERAL INFRASTRUCTURE AND SERVICING OBJECTIVES

C.2        TRANSPORTATION SERVICING OBJECTIVES AND POLICIESC.3        POTABLE WATER QUANTITY AND SUPPLY OBJECTIVES AND 

POLICIES

C.4        WASTE MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIESC.5        POWER AND TELECOMMUNICATIONS OBJECTIVES AND 

POLICIES

Salt Spring Island Housing Program Task Force
December 1, 2021                          Page 38 of 38


